
 

 
County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk  Fax: 01865 783195  Media Enquiries 01865 815266 
 

Notice of a Meeting 
 

Growth & Infrastructure Scrutiny Committee 
Wednesday, 9 March 2011 at 10.00 am 

County Hall 
Membership 
 
Chairman - Councillor David Nimmo-Smith 
Deputy Chairman - Councillor Nicholas P. Turner 
 
Councillors: Anne Purse 

Roger Belson 
Michael Gibbard 

 

Pete Handley 
Charles Mathew 

Keith Strangwood 
 

John Tanner 
David Turner 

 

 
Notes:  

Date of next meeting: 5 May 2011tbc 
 
What does this Committee review or scrutinise? 
• Transport; highways; traffic and parking; road safety (those areas not covered by the 

Safer & Stronger Communities Scrutiny Committee); public passenger transport 
• Regional planning and local development framework; economic development; waste 

management; environmental management; archaeology; access to the countryside; 
tourism 

• The planning, highways, rights of way and commons/village greens functions of the 
Planning & Regulation Committee 

 
How can I have my say? 
We welcome the views of the community on any issues in relation to the responsibilities 
of this Committee.  Members of the public may ask to speak on any item on the agenda 
or may suggest matters which they would like the Committee to look at.  Requests to 
speak must be submitted to the Committee Officer below no later than 9 am on the 
working day before the date of the meeting. 
 
For more information about this Committee please contact: 
 
Chairman - Councillor David Nimmo-Smith 
  E.Mail: david.nimmo-smith@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
Committee Officer - Liz Johnston, Tel: (01865) 328280 

liz.johnston@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 

 

 
Peter G. Clark  
County Solicitor February 2011 

Public Document Pack



 

 

About the County Council 
The Oxfordshire County Council is made up of 74 councillors who are democratically 
elected every four years. The Council provides a range of services to Oxfordshire’s 
630,000 residents. These include: 
 
schools social & health care libraries and museums 
the fire service roads  trading standards 
land use  transport planning waste management 
 

Each year the Council manages £0.9 billion of public money in providing these services. 
Most decisions are taken by a Cabinet of 9 Councillors, which makes decisions about 
service priorities and spending. Some decisions will now be delegated to individual 
members of the Cabinet. 
 
About Scrutiny 
 
Scrutiny is about: 
• Providing a challenge to the Cabinet 
• Examining how well the Cabinet and the Authority are performing  
• Influencing the Cabinet on decisions that affect local people 
• Helping the Cabinet to develop Council policies 
• Representing the community in Council decision making  
• Promoting joined up working across the authority’s work and with partners 
 
Scrutiny is NOT about: 
• Making day to day service decisions 
• Investigating individual complaints. 
 
What does this Committee do? 
The Committee meets up to 6 times a year or more. It develops a work programme, 
which lists the issues it plans to investigate. These investigations can include whole 
committee investigations undertaken during the meeting, or reviews by a panel of 
members doing research and talking to lots of people outside of the meeting.  Once an 
investigation is completed the Committee provides its advice to the Cabinet, the full 
Council or other scrutiny committees. Meetings are open to the public and all reports are 
available to the public unless exempt or confidential, when the items would be 
considered in closed session 
 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print 
version of these papers or special access facilities) please 
contact the officer named on the front page, giving as much 
notice as possible before the meeting  

A hearing loop is available at County Hall. 
 
 
 



 

 

 
AGENDA 

 

1. Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  
 

2. Declarations of Interest - see guidance note on the back page  
 

3. Speaking to or petitioning the Committee  
 

4. Call In of Decision by the Cabinet - Oxfordshire Minerals & Waste 
Development Framework: Core Strategy - Preferred Minerals Strategy 
(Pages 1 - 18) 

 

 A request has been received to call in the decision for scrutiny. 
 
 
The following Councillors have requested the decision be called in for 
scrutiny: 
Councillor Charles Mathew 
Councillor Anne Purse 
Councillor Melinda Tilley 
Councillor Roger Belson 
Councillor Michael Badcock 
Councillor Iain Brown 
Councillor Stewart Lilly 
Councillor Marilyn Badcock 
Councillor Neil Owen 
Councillor Bill Service 
Councillor Pete Handley 
 
 
The decision was: 
 
"RESOLVED":  
 
(a) To adopt the locally derived figures for aggregates supply requirement in 

paragraphs 7 and 8 of the report as the basis for the County Council’s preferred 
spatial strategy approach for mineral working. 

 
(b) to agree the County Council’s preferred spatial strategy approach for mineral 

working for consultation is: 
 

i. sand and gravel – concentration of working in existing areas of working, at Lower 
Windrush Valley, Eynsham/ Cassington/Yarnton, Sutton Courtenay, Cholsey and 
Caversham; 

 
ii. soft sand – working in three existing areas: south east of Faringdon; 

Tubney/Marcham/Hinton Waldrist; and Duns Tew; 



- 2 - 
 

 

 
iii. crushed rock – working in three existing areas: north of Bicester to the east of 

the River Cherwell; south of the A40 near Burford; and south east of Faringdon. 
 
(c) to agree that consultation on the preferred spatial strategy approach for mineral 

working be combined with consultation on a preferred waste spatial strategy, in 
June/July 2011.   

 
(d)  the Cabinet Member for Growth & Infrastructure to write to the Secretary of State 

and the Chairman of the  Planning & Regulation Committee to state that under 
the Coalition Government’s Localism agenda we now  endorse this as the 
emerging M3 figure when consideration is given to any application from this date 
onward." 

 
 
 
 
 
The reasons given in the call-in request are: 
 
The decision by the Cabinet on 16th February 2011 Agenda Item 8 b(i) is contrary to the 
interests of Oxfordshire residents primarily due to insufficient consideration of the issue 
of sustainability, which would naturally lead to a hybrid solution in the interests of all 
parties; this implies that too little emphasis has been placed on the problems of 
crossing the River Thames, since the larger needs for gravel south of the Thames at 
Grove, Didcot, Harwell and the like should be administered from pits in their local 
vicinity. This is supported by secondary issues, which together merit reconsideration of 
the spatial strategy approach, such as spreading the onus, aftercare and infrastructure. 
 
 
 
 
 
A copy of the report to Cabinet (CA8) is attached. 



- 3 - 
 

 

 

Declarations of Interest 
 
This note briefly summarises the position on interests which you must declare at the meeting.   
Please refer to the Members’ Code of Conduct in Part 9.1 of the Constitution for a fuller 
description. 
 
The duty to declare … 
You must always declare any “personal interest” in a matter under consideration, ie where the 
matter affects (either positively or negatively): 
(i) any of the financial and other interests which you are required to notify for inclusion in the 

statutory Register of Members’ Interests; or 
(ii) your own well-being or financial position or that of any member of your family or any 

person with whom you have a close association more than it would affect other people in 
the County. 

 
Whose interests are included … 
“Member of your family” in (ii) above includes spouses and partners and other relatives’ spouses 
and partners, and extends to the employment and investment interests of relatives and friends 
and their involvement in other bodies of various descriptions.  For a full list of what “relative” 
covers, please see the Code of Conduct. 
 
When and what to declare … 
The best time to make any declaration is under the agenda item “Declarations of Interest”.  
Under the Code you must declare not later than at the start of the item concerned or (if different) 
as soon as the interest “becomes apparent”.    
In making a declaration you must state the nature of the interest. 
 
Taking part if you have an interest … 
Having made a declaration you may still take part in the debate and vote on the matter unless 
your personal interest is also a “prejudicial” interest. 
 
“Prejudicial” interests … 
A prejudicial interest is one which a member of the public knowing the relevant facts would think 
so significant as to be likely to affect your judgment of the public interest.  
 
What to do if your interest is prejudicial … 
If you have a prejudicial interest in any matter under consideration, you may remain in the room 
but only for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving evidence 
relating to the matter under consideration, provided that the public are also allowed to attend the 
meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise. 
 
Exceptions … 
There are a few circumstances where you may regard yourself as not having a prejudicial 
interest or may participate even though you may have one.  These, together with other rules 
about participation in the case of a prejudicial interest, are set out in paragraphs 10 – 12 of the 
Code. 
 
Seeking Advice … 
It is your responsibility to decide whether any of these provisions apply to you in particular 
circumstances, but you may wish to seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer before the meeting. 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Division(s):  N/A 

COPY 
 

CABINET – 16 FEBRUARY 2011 
 

OXFORDSHIRE MINERALS AND WASTE DEVELOPMENT 
FRAMEWORK: CORE STRATEGY – PREFERRED MINERALS 

STRATEGY 
 

Report by Deputy Director (Growth & Infrastructure) 
 

Introduction 
 
1. The Minerals and Waste Core Strategy will set out the vision and 

strategic objectives together with the spatial strategy, core policies and 
implementation framework for the supply of minerals and management 
of waste in Oxfordshire.  Detailed site allocations will be identified in a 
subsequent document. 

 
2. On 19 October 2010, Cabinet agreed a set of guiding principles for the 

minerals strategy and an interim preferred strategy for mineral working.  
The agreed approach for sand and gravel was to concentrate working 
in existing areas of working, at Lower Windrush Valley, Eynsham/ 
Cassington/Yarnton, Radley/Nuneham Courtenay, Sutton Courtenay 
and Caversham.  But this was subject to the ability of these areas to 
provide for the medium to longer term being re-assessed when the 
requirement for sand and gravel supply had been established, and 
consideration being given to new areas of working if the re-assessment 
indicates this necessary. 

 
Local Assessment of Aggregates Supply Requirement 

 
3. Consultants Atkins have undertaken a locally based assessment of the 

requirement for aggregates supply in Oxfordshire.  This would be an 
evidence based alternative to the top-down figures in the South East 
Plan and the Secretary of State’s Proposed Changes. 

 
4. Atkins’ final report has been received.  It has been published on the 

County Council website and placed in the Members’ Resource Centre.  
The findings of the report are summarised in Annex 1. 

 
5. The report considers four possible methods of assessing the 

aggregates supply requirement, which result in figures for sand and 
gravel ranging between 1.23 and 1.58 million tonnes a year.  These 
figures are significantly lower than the figures in both the South East 
Plan (1.82 million tonnes a year) and the Secretary of State’s Proposed 
Changes (2.1 million tonnes a year).  Atkins consider that the two 
figures at the lower end of the range are most robust.   

 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



CA8 

  

6. For crushed rock the resultant figures are between 0.64 and 0.81 
million tonnes a year, compared with levels of 1.0 and 0.66 million 
tonnes a year in the South East Plan and the Secretary of State’s 
Proposed Changes.  

 
7. The report by Atkins was considered by the Minerals and Waste Plan 

Working Group on 24 January.  The view of the Working Group is that 
the average of the two most robust scenarios for assessing local need 
should be used as a basis for the preferred minerals strategy for 
consultation, i.e.: 

 
Sand and gravel 1.26 million tonnes a year; 
Crushed rock 0.63 million tonnes a year. 

 
8. The sand and gravel figure can be subdivided between sharp sand and 

gravel and soft sand, on the basis of recent past production, as follows: 
 

Sharp sand and gravel 1.01 million tonnes a year (80%); 
Soft sand 0.25 million tonnes a year (20%). 

 
Re-assessment of Minerals Strategy Approach 

 
9. The interim preferred minerals strategy has been tested for 

deliverability using the supply levels set out above against a preliminary 
assessment of potential sites.   

 
Sharp sand and gravel 

 
10. An assessment of potential sites for sharp sand and gravel working 

nominated by mineral operators or landowners has been undertaken to 
test the potential deliverability of the strategy option areas.  The 
method and outcome of this assessment is summarised in Annex 2.  
The full site assessment results have been placed in the Members’ 
Resource Centre. 

 
11. Of the areas within the interim strategy, the potential resource within 

the Caversham area should be reduced because one site 
(Mapledurham) is not considered to be deliverable; and the Radley/ 
Nuneham Courtenay area should be discounted because neither of the 
sites within it is likely to be deliverable.  All sites within the Lower 
Windrush Valley, Eynsham/ Cassington/Yarnton and Sutton Courtenay 
areas are potentially deliverable.   

 
12. Of the strategy option areas not included in the interim strategy, all four 

sites in the Clanfield/Bampton area and the two sites in the southern 
(Dorchester–Warborough–Benson) part of the Warborough/Benson/ 
Shillingford area are unlikely to be deliverable.  All sites within the 
Sutton/Stanton Harcourt, Clifton Hampden and Cholsey areas, and the 
northern (Drayton St Leonard–Stadhampton) part of the Warborough/ 
Benson/Shillingford area are potentially deliverable.   

 

Page 2



CA8 

  

13. Based on the level of 1.01 million tonnes a year, and taking into 
account existing planning permissions, the net requirement for new 
provision for sharp sand and gravel over the plan period to 2030 is 
11.73 million tonnes, as shown in Annex 3. 

 
14. The total potentially deliverable sharp sand and gravel resource at 

nominated sites within the interim strategy areas is 33.25 million 
tonnes.  However the rate at which this resource could be supplied is 
dependent on sufficient production capacity being available throughout 
the plan period.  Analysis of potential capacity is shown in Annex 4. 

 
15. The current total production capacity for sharp sand and gravel is 1.14 

million tonnes a year.  This is sufficient to meet the proposed 
requirement in paragraph 8 (1.01 million tonnes a year).  The Lower 
Windrush Valley, Eynsham/Cassington/Yarnton and Caversham areas 
could provide throughout the period to 2030, but the Sutton Courtenay 
area could only provide up to around 2020.  Additional production 
capacity would then be needed to make up a minimum shortfall of 
about 0.2 million tonnes a year. 

 
16. Scope for an additional production unit in either the Lower Windrush 

Valley or Eynsham/Cassington/Yarnton area is limited by concerns 
relating to the impact of higher traffic levels and potential for increased 
flood risk.  This means that production capacity in these two areas 
should be limited to three production units, as at present.  An additional 
production unit would also not be deliverable at Caversham.  

 
17. Consistent with the principles agreed for the interim preferred strategy, 

any shortfall in supply will need to be addressed by a new area being 
brought into production.  The timing of such a move will be informed by 
the results of annual monitoring of production and supply. 

 
18. The new area would essentially be to replace the Sutton Courtenay 

area, but would also provide some contingency in the event of other 
areas not being brought forward or the sand and gravel requirement 
being higher than expected.  To enable demand for sand and gravel in 
southern Oxfordshire to continue to be met from a nearby source, a 
new strategy area should be identified in this part of the county.  There 
are three potential areas which could meet the requirement: Clifton 
Hampden, Drayton St Leonard/Stadhampton and Cholsey.  These 
areas are shown in Annex 5. 

 
19. The assessment work completed to date points to the Cholsey area 

(between Cholsey and Wallingford Bypass) as being the least 
constrained.  It has good access to the lorry route network and is closer 
(by road) to areas of demand for construction materials in southern 
Oxfordshire, particularly Didcot and the Science Vale area.   

 
20. Based on the above considerations the Minerals and Waste Plan 

Working Group agreed at its meeting on 24 January to recommend that 
the strategy for sand and gravel should be amended by removal of the 

Page 3



CA8 

  

Radley/Nuneham Courtenay area and inclusion of the Cholsey area.  
The revised strategy areas are shown in Annex 5. 

 
Soft sand 

 
21. The interim strategy for soft sand is for working in three existing areas: 

south east of Faringdon; Tubney/Marcham/Hinton Waldrist; and Duns 
Tew.  The site nominations within these strategy areas could potentially 
provide a total of 9.6 million tonnes soft sand.  This meets the proposed 
requirement in paragraph 8 (0.25 million tonnes a year).   

 
Crushed rock 

 
22. The interim strategy for crushed rock is for working in three existing 

areas: north of Bicester to the east of the River Cherwell; south of the 
A40 near Burford; and south east of Faringdon.  There is a high level of 
existing permitted reserves of crushed rock and the requirement for 
additional provision will be relatively small. 

 
Next Steps 

 
23. The contents of the local assessment of aggregates supply 

requirement will be made available and comments invited from industry 
and other key stakeholders over the next two months.  A formal public 
consultation on the preferred minerals strategy, combined with a 
preferred waste strategy, will be undertaken in June/July 2011.  That 
will in turn shape the content of the Core Strategy document to be 
submitted to Government at the beginning of 2012, consistent with the 
previously agreed timetable. 

 
24. In the meantime the supply level figures set out in paragraphs 7 and 8 

should be adopted as emerging County Council policy.  This will be a 
material consideration in the determination of future planning 
applications for mineral working. 

 
Sustainability Implications 

 
25. Sustainability appraisal is being carried out as an integral part of 

preparation of the Core Strategy and will be reported on when Cabinet 
considers the draft preferred options document for consultation in May 
2011. 

 
Corporate Policies and Priorities 

 
26. The Council has a statutory duty to produce the Minerals and Waste 

Core Strategy.  It will contribute to the Council’s strategic objectives of 
world class economy, healthy and thriving communities and 
environment and climate change.  

Page 4



CA8 

  

Financial and Staff Implications  
 
27. The programme of work for the Minerals and Waste Core Strategy is 

included within the Directorate work priorities.  This report does not 
raise any additional financial or staffing implications.  

 
Risk Management 

 
28. The Minerals and Waste Development Framework is a high risk 

project.  The complexity of the Minerals and Waste Development 
Framework process and the potential implications for major mineral 
working and waste management proposals emphasise the importance 
of good project management and regular reporting on risk 
management.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
29. The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to: 
 

(a) Adopt the locally derived figures for aggregates supply 
requirement in paragraphs 7 and 8 of the report as the basis 
for the County Council’s preferred spatial strategy 
approach for mineral working. 

 
(b) Agree the County Council’s preferred spatial strategy 

approach for mineral working for consultation is: 
 

i. sand and gravel – concentration of working in existing 
areas of working, at Lower Windrush Valley, Eynsham/ 
Cassington/Yarnton, Sutton Courtenay, Cholsey and 
Caversham; 

 
ii. soft sand – working in three existing areas: south east 

of Faringdon; Tubney/Marcham/Hinton Waldrist; and 
Duns Tew; 

 
iii. crushed rock – working in three existing areas: north of 

Bicester to the east of the River Cherwell; south of the 
A40 near Burford; and south east of Faringdon. 

 
(c) Agree that consultation on the preferred spatial strategy 

approach for mineral working be combined with 
consultation on a preferred waste spatial strategy, in 
June/July 2011.  

 
Martin Tugwell 
Deputy Director (Growth & Infrastructure) 
 
Background papers: Nil 
 
Contact Officer:  Peter Day, Tel 01865 815544 
February 2011 

Page 5



CA8 

  

ANNEX 1 
 
Local Assessment of Aggregates Supply Requirements for Oxfordshire 
Report by Atkins Ltd for Oxfordshire County Council 
 
Summary of Findings 
 

Project brief 
 
1. The consultants Atkins were appointed in November 2010 to undertake a 

locally based assessment of the requirements for aggregates supply in 
Oxfordshire. The project brief asked for: 

 
• An analysis of current aggregates supply and demand in Oxfordshire, 

covering all types of aggregates. 
 

• An appropriate, transparent and robust methodology to produce a 
forecast demand for aggregates in Oxfordshire over the period to 
2030, related to anticipated economic activity. 

 
• An assessment of the maximum practicable contribution that could be 

made from secondary and recycled aggregate sources. 
 

• An assessment of the appropriate levels of movement of aggregates 
by type into and out of Oxfordshire required over the period to 2030. 

 
• A breakdown of the quantities of aggregates supply required from the 

following sources in Oxfordshire over the period to 2030: 
- sand and gravel from quarries in Oxfordshire; 
- crushed rock from quarries in Oxfordshire; 
- secondary and recycled aggregates sites in Oxfordshire. 

 
2. In particular, the purpose of the study was to establish the amount of 

sand and gravel for which provision should be made in the Minerals and 
Waste Core Strategy, as an alternative to the ‘apportionment’ figures in 
the South East Plan and the Secretary of State’s Proposed Changes. 

 
Summary of Atkins’ Report 

 
3. Atkins have produced their final report, which includes the following 

sections. 
 
4. Chapter 2 gives background on the current ‘managed aggregates supply 

system’, national and regional aggregates guidelines, and regional and 
sub-regional apportionments. 

 
5. Chapter 3 is an analysis of current aggregate supply and demand.  The 

main findings are: 
 

• There was a significant fall in sales of sharp sand and gravel in 
Oxfordshire and elsewhere between 1999 and 2009:  68% in 

Page 6



CA8 

  

Oxfordshire; 57% in the South East; 40% nationally.  Local factors 
have contributed to the fall in sales, in particular the depletion of 
reserves at 3 of Oxfordshire’s largest output quarries. 

 
• ‘Trade’ in aggregates is required to match the amounts and types of 

aggregates available from local geology with what is required for local 
construction in each county. Information on aggregate movements for 
2005 and 2009 and calculations of per capita consumption of 
aggregates since 2001 suggest Oxfordshire has changed from being 
a net exporter of aggregates to a net importer. The position should be 
checked when full data becomes available for 2009. 

 
• National data on alternative aggregates suggests their contribution to 

total aggregate supply has risen significantly but the rate of increase 
is now falling off. Survey data indicates there is sufficient processing 
capacity in Oxfordshire to cater for recorded production of alternative 
aggregates, but some of this capacity will be lost by 2016 because of 
the closure of Didcot A Power Station. Production of alternative 
aggregates is anticipated to grow by a small amount in the period to 
2015, but level off thereafter. The anticipated level of production in 
Oxfordshire is estimated between 400,000 to 550,000 tonnes a year. 
Further capacity and production are anticipated from mobile plant. 
Rates of utilisation are considered high, and the contribution to total 
aggregate consumption is estimated to be about 27% in the South 
East, slightly higher than in England as a whole. 

 
6. Chapter 4 explores a range of approaches to estimating future 

aggregates requirements.  It examines the possibility of using various 
forecasts or predictions of construction or economic activity as indicators 
of aggregates demand.  Forecasts indicate increased economic activity, 
suggesting that future aggregate consumption in Oxfordshire is likely to 
be similar to or slightly higher than recently. But the following problems 
were encountered: national or regional data do not provide a locally 
derived approach; forecasts are short term; there is not a sufficiently 
reliable link between past sales and construction or economic activity in 
Oxfordshire to enable a confident forecast of future aggregates demand; 
and there is insufficient information on imports and exports to derive an 
assessment of levels of movement of aggregates in future years.  
Therefore other methods of predicting future aggregates demand in 
Oxfordshire should be looked at. 

 
7. Chapter 5 considers four methods of predicting future aggregates 

demand in Oxfordshire: 
 

i. Application of the 2003 sub-regional apportionment methodology to 
the regional figure in the Secretary of State’s Proposed Changes to 
the South East Plan (March 2010).  This gives an Oxfordshire sand 
and gravel figure of 1.53 mtpa.  This is not a locally derived figure but 
provides a useful comparison to demonstrate the distortion caused by 
the new method of sub-apportionment used in the Secretary of 
State’s Proposed Changes, in which the figure for Oxfordshire is 2.1 
mtpa. 

Page 7



CA8 

  

 
ii. ‘Smoothing’ of past sales as a predictor of future demand.  A number 

of different statistical approaches were applied.  The best of these to 
use would be one of the simpler methods such as a seven or five 
year moving average or median.  This should ensure an initial buffer 
above recent sales sufficient to absorb a short-term increase, but in 
the event of strongly increasing aggregate consumption there would 
be a shortfall.  A more precautionary approach would be to apply an 
additional contingency buffer of say 10%.  The resulting figures for 
Oxfordshire are: sand and gravel – 1.29 mtpa; crushed rock – 0.62 
mtpa.  Assuming alternative aggregates contribute 27% of total 
aggregate supply, the requirement would be 0.64 mtpa.  This 
approach is based on past sales but is relatively uncomplicated and 
easy to review. 

 
iii. Comparison of national and local housing provision.  This approach 

uses housing completions as a proxy for total aggregate 
consumption.  Past data on primary aggregate sales and dwellings 
completed for England is used to produce an average notional 
tonnage consumed per ‘development unit’.  This is then applied to the 
new housing numbers planned for Oxfordshire over the period to 
2026 to calculate a notional annual figure of total primary aggregates 
demand in Oxfordshire over the period.  This is then subdivided 
between sand and gravel and crushed rock in proportion to past 
sales.  An assumption is made that imports and exports will be in 
balance.  The resulting figures for Oxfordshire are: sand and gravel – 
1.58 mtpa; crushed rock – 0.81 mtpa.  Assuming alternative 
aggregates contribute 27% of total aggregate supply, the requirement 
would be 0.88 mtpa.  This method is subject to a number of 
assumptions and uncertainties.  In particular, there is a large factoring 
up from approximately 60 tonnes of aggregate used in building a 
typical house to 922 tonnes per ‘development unit’. 

 
iv. Comparison of national and local per capita consumption of primary 

aggregates.   This approach uses population as a proxy for total 
aggregate consumption.  Past data on primary aggregate sales and 
population for England is used to produce an average notional 
tonnage consumed per head.  This is then applied to the population 
forecast for Oxfordshire over the period to 2030 to calculate a 
notional annual figure of total primary aggregates demand in 
Oxfordshire over the period.  This is then subdivided between sand 
and gravel and crushed rock in proportion to past sales.  An 
assumption is made that imports and exports will be in balance.  The 
resulting figures for Oxfordshire are: sand and gravel – 1.23 mtpa; 
crushed rock – 0.64 mtpa.  Assuming alternative aggregates 
contribute 27% of total aggregate supply, the requirement would be 
0.69 mtpa.  This method is also subject to a number of assumptions 
and uncertainties, but it is considered to be a more robust approach 
than the housing proxy method because it does not involve factoring 
up. 

 

Page 8



CA8 

  

Conclusions 
 
8. The outcomes of the four methods of predicting future aggregates 

demand in Oxfordshire put forward in Atkins’ report are summarised 
below, together with the current apportionment figures and other recently 
proposed figures. 

 
Method of predicting 
future aggregates 
supply requirement in 
Oxfordshire 
(Atkins report chapter 
5) 

Local sand 
and gravel 
supply 
requirement 
(million 
tonnes per 
annum) 

Local 
crushed 
rock supply 
requirement 
(million 
tonnes per 
annum) 

Secondary 
& recycled 
aggregates 
supply 
requirement 
(million 
tonnes per 
annum)  

1) Application of 2003 
sub-regional 
apportionment 
methodology to 2010 
regional figure 

1.53 – – 

2) ‘Smoothing’ of past 
sales as a predictor of 
future demand 

1.29 0.62 0.64 

3) Comparison of 
national and local 
housing provision 
(housing proxy) 

1.58 0.81 0.88 

4) Comparison of 
national and local per 
capita consumption of 
primary aggregates 
(population proxy) 

1.23 0.64 0.69 

Other supply rates for 
comparison 

   

Current South East Plan 
Apportionment (May 
2009) 

1.82 1.00 0.90 

Secretary of State’s 
Proposed Changes 
(March 2010) 

2.10 0.66 – 

SEERA proposed 
apportionment (March 
2009) (which was 
accepted by the County 
Council) 

1.58 0.71 – 

 
9. Of the various methods they have considered, Atkins suggest that 

method 4 (population proxy) is the most robust.  The figures resulting 
from this method are very close to those derived from method 2 
(smoothing of past sales).  This suggests that an average of the figures 
from these two methods might be appropriate to be used as a basis for 

Page 9



CA8 

  

progressing work on the Minerals and Waste Core Strategy and for 
testing through consultation.  These figures would be: 

 
Sand and gravel 1.26 million tonnes per annum 
Crushed rock 0.63 million tonnes per annum 
Secondary & recycled 0.67 million tonnes per annum 

 
Peter Day 
Oxfordshire County Council 
February 2011 

Page 10



CA8 

  

ANNEX 2 
 
Minerals and Waste Core Strategy – Preferred Minerals Strategy 
Preliminary Assessment of Sand and Gravel Site Nominations 
 
A. Methodology 
 
1. The preliminary site assessment has comprised three stages; 
 
 Stage 1: Identify a long list of possible sites 
 
2. In 2006, mineral operators, landowners and agents were invited to 

nominated potential minerals sites for consideration for inclusion in the 
Oxfordshire Minerals and Waste Development Framework. These sites 
were included in the Minerals Sites Proposals and Policies Issues and 
Options paper which was published for consultation in April 2007. That 
paper also included sites identified by officers which were thought to 
have potential resources but had not been nominated. Those sites have 
not been considered further because deliverability is uncertain and there 
are more than sufficient potential resources within nominated sites. 

 
3. A further ‘call for sites’ was made in December 2008, when mineral 

operators, landowners and agents were invited to renew their existing 
nominations, withdraw any they no longer wished to put forward and to 
submit new nominations. Approximately 60 site nominations were 
received for sand and gravel s, 10 for soft sand and 10 for crushed rock 
sites. A list of all sites nominated is on the County Council’s website. 

 
 Stage 2: Assessment of deliverability 
 
4. Using information from the nominations, the potential available resources 

in each nomination were estimated and this information was used to 
inform the generation of spatial strategy options during 2010. The 
preliminary site assessment has sought to update the information on the 
deliverability of the nominations; ie the resource potentially available and 
the likely timescale within which each site could be worked.  

 
5. In November 2010, mineral operators, landowners and agents who had 

made nominations were asked to provide up to date information on the 
likely deliverability of sites by confirming when sites would be likely to 
become operational, and notifying any sites which they wished to 
withdraw.  

 
6. This information has been collated and analysed to build up a picture of 

the likely timescale within which sites in each strategy area would be 
deliverable. In strategy option areas where there are few nominations, 
this analysis has demonstrated whether there is likely to be a sufficient 
number of nominations from which resources could be worked to make a 
strategic contribution to the need for sand and gravel over the plan 
period. 

 

Page 11



CA8 

  

 Stage 3: Planning criteria assessment 
 
7. Each of the site nominations has been assessed against the following 

planning criteria: 
 

Ø The estimated mineral resources in the site; 
Ø Whether the site is in or directly adjacent to an AONB; 
Ø Whether the site is in or directly adjacent to a site designated of 

international or national nature conservation importance – SAC, SSSI 
or NNR; 

Ø A recommendation from the County Archaeology Officer on whether 
the site should be precluded on the grounds of archaeological assets. 

Ø The agricultural land classification of the site; 
Ø The proportion of the site in Flood Zone 3b, the functional flood plain; 
Ø Distance from the site to the lorry route network suitable for HGVs. 

 
 Estimated resources 
 
8. The estimate of resources in each nomination has been checked against 

the area of the site and information from British Geological Survey 
Mineral Assessment Reports. 

 
 Environmental constraints 
 
9. There is a policy presumption against mineral working unless it can be 

shown that the need for the development outweighs any adverse 
environmental consequences on: 

 
Ø Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty or their setting; 
Ø The conservation interest of a Special Area of Conservation, SSSI or 

National Nature Reserve; 
Ø A Scheduled Ancient Monument or other nationally important 

archaeologically asset. 
 
10. If a site is in or immediately adjacent to one of these areas and is 

constrained by other planning criteria, this could preclude further 
development.   

 
 Agricultural Land Classification 
 
11. Planning Policy Statement 7 (2004), Sustainable Development in Rural 

Areas, notes that the presence of best and most versatile agricultural 
land (defined as land in grades 1, 2 and 3a of the Agricultural Land 
Classification), should be taken into account alongside other 
sustainability considerations. There is very little Grade 1 agricultural land 
in Oxfordshire. Where a site would significantly affect Grade 1 land it 
should be excluded from further consideration. Where sites affect Grade 
2 or 3a land, further consideration is advised, but with caution. 

 

Page 12



CA8 

  

 Distance from site to lorry route network 
 
12. The distance was measured from each site to the lorry route network 

identified on the map published by the County Council as being suitable 
for HGVs. 

 
 Proportion of site in Flood Zone 3b 
 
13. Sand and gravel extraction is defined in PPS 25 (2010), Development 

and Flood Risk, as water compatible development and as such can take 
place in the functional flood plain, although it should still be subject to the 
sequential test. The infrastructure associated with mineral extraction is 
not water compatible development and should therefore be located 
outside the functional flood plain. Using the data from the Oxfordshire 
SFRA (2010), this assessment identifies sites which are wholly within the 
functional flood plain and where any processing plant would therefore 
need to be located within the functional flood plain. Such sites should be 
excluded from further assessment. 

 
 
B. Summary of Assessment Results  
 
14. A spreadsheet showing the deliverability of sites and the results of the 

assessment against planning criteria has been placed in the Members’ 
Resource Centre.  

 
15. The conclusions of the assessment for each of the sand and gravel 

strategy option areas are as follows: 
 
a) Lower Windrush Valley 
 No nominated sites are precluded from further assessment at this stage. 

The potentially deliverable capacity of site nominations in this area is 
14.5 million tonnes. 

 
b) Eynsham/Cassington/Yarnton 
 No nominated sites are precluded from further assessment at this stage. 

The potentially deliverable capacity of site nominations in this area is 
12.2 million tonnes. 

 
c) Sutton Courtenay 
 No nominated sites are precluded from further assessment at this stage. 

The potentially deliverable capacity of site nominations in this area is 
2.55 million tonnes. 

 
d) Radley / Nuneham Courtenay 
 Site SG-42 (land at Nuneham Courtenay) is precluded from further 

assessment on the grounds of the archaeological and historic 
environment assessment of the site. Site SG-41 (land north of Lower 
Radley) would not be deliverable in the first 10 years of the plan period. 
This area is therefore unlikely to be able to make a strategic contribution 
to sand and gravel supply in the short to medium term, and there is 
uncertainty about the longer term. 

Page 13



CA8 

  

 
e) Caversham / Mapledurham 
 Site SG -12 (Chazey Wood, Mapledurham) is precluded from further 

assessment on the grounds that it is unlikely to be deliverable until after 
2020, proximity to AONB and poor access. The remaining potentially 
deliverable resource of site nominations in the Caversham area is 4 
million tonnes. 

 
f) Clanfield/Bampton 
 All four nominated sites in this area are precluded on the grounds of the 

archaeological and historic landscape assessment and distance from 
markets. This area is therefore unlikely to make a strategic contribution 
to sand and gravel supply during the plan period. 

 
g) Clifton Hampden 
 The one site nomination in this area is not precluded from further 

assessment. The potentially deliverable resource is 4 million tonnes. 
 
h) Warborough / Benson / Shillingford / Drayton St Leonard / Stadhampton 
 Site SG03 (land adjacent to Benson Marina) is precluded from further 

assessment on the grounds that it is almost wholly in Flood Zone 3b, is 
adjacent to the AONB, and has Grade 1 agricultural land. Site SG-13 
(land at Dorchester – Shillingford – Warborough) is precluded from 
further assessment on the grounds of the archaeological assessment 
and the Grade 1 agricultural land on site. The remaining potentially 
deliverable resource of site nominations in the Drayton St Leonard – 
Stadhampton area is 5.5 million tonnes. 

 
(i) Sutton/Stanton Harcourt 
 No nominated sites are precluded from further assessment in this area. 

The potentially deliverable resource of site nominations in this area is 14 
million tonnes. 

 
(j) Cholsey 
 No nominated sites are precluded from further assessment at this stage. 

The potentially deliverable capacity of site nominations in this area is 4.9 
million tonnes. 

 
Lois Partridge 
Oxfordshire County Council 
January 2011 

Page 14



CA8 

  

ANNEX 3 
 
Minerals and Waste Core Strategy – Preferred Minerals Strategy 
 
Requirement for Sharp Sand and Gravel Supply Provision 2010 – 2030 
 

Levels of need for sand 
and gravel supply 
suggested in the Atkins 
report 

Total sand 
and gravel 
supply rate 
(million 
tonnes per 
annum) 

Net 
requirement 
for sharp 
sand and 
gravel 
(80%) 
(mtpa) 

Sharp sand 
& gravel 
required 
2010 – 
2030 (21 
years) (mt) 

Permitted 
reserves of 
sharp sand 
& gravel at 
Dec 2009 + 
permissions 
since (mt) 

Net sharp 
sand & 
gravel 
provision 
required 
over plan 
period (mt) 

1) Based on application 
of 2003 National & 
Regional Aggregate 
Provision Guideline to 
the 2009 guidelines 

1.53 1.22 25.62 9.48 16.14 

2) Based on application 
of a series of ‘moving 
averages’ to 7 years 
past sales figures, with 
buffer 

1.29 1.03 21.63 9.48 12.15 

3) Based on national & 
local housing provision 
proxy; use of 
aggregate 
consumption per 
‘development unit’ 

1.58 1.26 26.46 9.48 16.98 

4) Based on national and 
local population proxy; 
comparison of 
Oxfordshire’s 
projected population 
figures and primary 
aggregate 
consumption 

1.23 0.98 20.58 9.48 11.10 

5) Average of 2) and 4) 1.26 1.01 21.21 9.48 11.73 
 

Page 15



CA8 

  

ANNEX 4 
 
Minerals and Waste Core Strategy – Preferred Minerals Strategy 
 
Production Capacity and Likely Duration of Working in Strategy Option Areas 
 

Strategy option areas Permitted or 
proposed 
capacity per 
year (from 
planning 
permissions or 
applications) 
(tonnes a year) 

Duration of 
working of 
current 
permissions 
at permitted 
rate 

Net deliverable 
resource from 
site 
nominations 
after 
preliminary site 
assessment 
(million 
tonnes) 

Duration of 
extraction of 
site 
nominations 
at permitted 
or proposed 
rate 

Interim strategy 
areas 

    

Lower Windrush Valley 
(2 quarries) 

500,000 10 years 
and 8 years 
respectively 

14.5 29 years 

Eynsham/Cassington/ 
Yarnton (1 quarry) 

180,000 – 12.2 68 years 

Radley / Nuneham 
Courtenay 

0 – 0 0 

Sutton Courtenay (1 
quarry) 

330,000 3 years 2.55 8 years 

Caversham (1 quarry) 
 

130,000 3 years 4.0 31 years 

Total of Interim 
Strategy Areas 

1,140,000  33.25  

Other strategy option 
areas 

    

Clanfield/Bampton 
 

0 – 0 0 

Sutton/Stanton 
Harcourt 

300,000 – 14.0 47 years 

Clifton Hampden 
 

250,000 – 4.0 16 years 

Warborough/Benson/ 
Shillingford/ Drayton St 
Leonard/Stadhampton 

250,000 – 5.5 22 years 

Cholsey 
 

200,000 – 4.9 25 years 

 

Page 16



CA8 

  

ANNEX 5 
 
Minerals and Waste Core Strategy – Preferred Minerals Strategy 
 
Potentially Deliverable Sand and Gravel Areas 

 
 

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Call In of Decision by the Cabinet - Oxfordshire Minerals & Waste Development Framework: Core Strategy - Preferred Minerals Strategy

